
Page 1 of 1 Agenda – February 6, 2024 Council Meeting 

AGENDA 
FOR THE REGULAR MEETING  

OF THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE 
CITY OF THORNE BAY, ALASKA 

TUESDAY, February 6, 2024 
TIME: 6: 30 p.m. 

THERE WILL BE A WORKSHOP BEGINNING AT 6:00PM 
LOCATION: IN PERSON AT CITY HALL or TELECONFERENCE/VIDEO CONFERENCING LINE 
Phone Number: 1- 650-479-3208 Meeting 
Link: 
https://cityofthornebay.my.webex.com/cityofthornebay.my/j.php?MTID=m99f71eee7f975b71d7ee0f9f7c5e44a1 
Meeting number: 182 323 7632 Password  MghMxgJy424 (64469459 from phones and video systems) 

1) CALL TO ORDER:
2) PLEDGE TO FLAG:
3) ROLL CALL:
4) APPROVAL OF AGENDA:
5) MAYOR’S REPORT:
6) ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS:

a) City Administrator:
b) Clerk: Attached in Packet

7) DEPARTMENT REPORTS:
a) WATER: In Packet
b) EMS:
c) VPSO:

8) PUBLIC COMMENTS:
9) COUNCIL COMMENTS:
10) CONSENT AGENDA:

a) MINUTES
b) Minutes of the January 16, 2024, Regular City Council Meeting, discussion and action item:

11) NEW BUSINESS:
a) Appointing a new Vice Mayor for the City of Thorne Bay, discussion and possible action item;
b) Appointing City Council member for Seat D remainder of term (8 months), discussion and

possible action item;
12) ORDINANCES FOR PUBLIC HEARING:

a) Ordinance 24-02-06-01: Title 2- Administration & Personnel, Chapter 02.04-City Council, Section
02.04.130-Meetings--Regular, Subsection (A) Day Of Meetings Held, discussion and action item;

13) ORDINANCES FOR INTRODUCTION:
a) Non-Code Ordinance 24-03-05-01: Approving the Long-term Lease with Atlas Towers, discussion

and action item;
14) CONTINUATION OF PUBLIC COMMENT:
15) CONTINUATION OF COUNCIL COMMENT:
16) ADJOURNMENT:

POSTED: February 2, 2023

https://cityofthornebay.my.webex.com/cityofthornebay.my/j.php?MTID=m99f71eee7f975b71d7ee0f9f7c5e44a1


 p g .  1                M i n u t e s  J a n  1 6 ,  2 0 2 4  R e g u l a r  C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g  

 MINUTES 
FOR THE REGULAR MEETING  

OF THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE  
CITY OF THORNE BAY, ALASKA 
TUESDAY, JANUARY 16, 2024 

TIME: 6: 30 p.m. 
THERE WAS A WORKSHOP BEGINNING AT 6:00PM 

 

 

1) CALL TO ORDER: 
Mayor Nyquest called the meeting to order at 6:30 pm 
 

2) PLEDGE TO FLAG: 
The audience and council stood for the pledge to the flag. 
 

3) ROLL CALL: 
Those present were:  
Nyquest, Blair, LaVoie, Burger,&  Hartwell   
Those Excused were: Oatman, & Kaer 
 

4) APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 

NYQUEST moved to approve the agenda.     Hartwell  seconded the motion.   
 

MOTION: Move to approve the agenda 
F/S:  Nyquest/Hartwell 
YEAS:  Nyquest, Blair, LaVoie, Burger, Hartwell 
NAYS:  None 
EXCUSED:  Oatman & Kaer  
STATUS: Motion   Passed. 
 
5) MAYOR’S REPORT: 

a)  Set a time for meetings and had one respondent on that. I’m open for meetings with the community on 
an as needed basis.   

b)  Attended East POW AC meeting here in the chambers, discussion included issues with the crab 
population, and they voted in the affirmative to make the bay residential crabbing only (advisory vote 
for recommendation to the State).  Lee Burger Clarified the line of inclusion was from the bay where 
McFarland’s Floatel sits all the way inside our bay.  

c)  Sports games this weekend, basketball, (Fri & Sat), usually around 6 pm, get out and support the kids. 
6) ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS: 

a) City Administrator: Attached in Minutes  
i. Nyquest questioned how many grant requests total to better understand our rating of ‘12’.   

b) Clerk’s Report: Financial Report attached in Packet. 
7) DEPARTMENT REPORTS: 

c) Water Report: Attached in Packet 
d) EMS Report: No Report Given Via Victoria Anderson  
e) VPSO Report: Will West gave the following report: Firehall on SS (working with Huestis) OVK got the firetruck 

out of the station. In contact with Jim W. to get a new firetruck up here some time this year. Newer than 
current firetruck, short wheelbase so ambulance and firetruck should fit in the bay. On EMS calls, Block and 
Lot numbers are consistently confused and ambulance is sent to wrong house. Would like to see Roads and 



 p g .  2                M i n u t e s  J a n  1 6 ,  2 0 2 4  R e g u l a r  C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g  

Street names if possible for safety of the community. Working on the Fire Dept. Registration for the year.  
i. EMS = 7 calls in Dec.  
ii. VPSO: Mendonsa gone to the academy this month for 2.5 months, Cover will be by Zach West in Kasaan. 

8) PUBLIC COMMENTS: None 
9) COUNCIL COMMENTS:  

Burger questioned what the make and model of the new firetruck is. VPSO West responded that 
conversations about details will be happening tomorrow.  
Huestis commented that it’s used fire equipment from COVID money bought equipment. We will pay for 
shipping and can apply for transportation funding.  

10) CONSENT AGENDA: 
f) MINUTES 

i. Minutes of the December 19, 2023, Regular City Council Meeting, discussion and action item: 
NYQUEST moved to approve the corrected Consent Agenda. Hartwell seconded the motion.   
Discussion as follows: 
Hartwell requested a correction of the minutes where it states, “4.5 years” to reflect “24.5 years”. 
 

MOTION: Move to approve the Corrected Consent Agenda 
F/S:  Nyquest/Hartwell 
YEAS:  Nyquest, Blair, LaVoie, Burger, Hartwell 
NAYS:   
EXCUSED:  Oatman & Kaer  
STATUS: Motion  Passed. 

 
11) NEW BUSINESS: 

g)  Resolution 24-01-16-01: Updating the Authorized  Signers on The City of Thorne Bay’s Tongass 
Federal Credit Union Checking, Savings and Gaming Accounts, discussion and action item; 

NYQUEST moved to approve Resolution 24-01-16-01 Updating the Authorized  Signers on The City of Thorne 
Bay’s Tongass Federal Credit Union Checking, Savings and Gaming Accounts        

Burger seconded the motion.  Discussion as follows; 
Hartwell questioned why Bubba was on the Resolution 
Huestis clarified that another Resolution would be coming to fix that at another meeting.  
City Clerk commented that the only changes on this resolution were for the Gaming Account Signers and the 

Checking Account Signers would be updated when we have a replacement for Bubba’s Vice Mayor Seat.  
 
MOTION: Move to approve Resolution 24-01-16-01 Updating the Authorized  Signers on The City of Thorne 

Bay’s Tongass Federal Credit Union Checking, Savings and Gaming Account 
F/S:  Nyquest/Burger 
YEAS:  Nyquest, Blair, LaVoie, Burger, Hartwell 
NAYS:   
EXCUSED:  Oatman & Kaer 
STATUS: Motion Passed. 
 

h)  Resolution 24-01-16-02: Adopting an Alternative Allocation Method for FY24 Shared Fisheries 
Business Tax Program, discussion and action item; 

NYQUEST moved to approve  Resolution 24-01-16-02, Adopting an Alternative Allocation Method for FY24 
Shared Fisheries Business Tax Program  

Burger seconded the motion.   
Discussion as follows: 



 p g .  3                M i n u t e s  J a n  1 6 ,  2 0 2 4  R e g u l a r  C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g  

Burger questioned what was being changed?  
Clarification was given that there are no changes, it is the same as we always have passed.  
 
MOTION: Move to approve the Resolution 24-01-16-02 Adopting an Alternative Allocation Method for 

FY24 Shared Fisheries Business Tax Program 
F/S:  Nyquest/Burger 
YEAS:  Nyquest, Blair, LaVoie, Burger, Hartwell 
NAYS:   
EXCUSED:  Oatman & Kaer 
STATUS: Motion Passed. 
 

i)  Resolution 24-01-16-03: Accepting the Resignation of Councilman Oatman, discussion and possible 
action item; 

NYQUEST moved to approve Resolution 24-01-16-03 Accepting the Resignation of Councilman Oatman  
Burger seconded the motion.   
Discussion: None 
MOTION: Move to approve the approve Resolution 24-01-16-03 Accepting the Resignation of Councilman 

Oatman 
F/S:  Nyquest/Burger 
YEAS:  Nyquest, Blair, LaVoie, Burger, Hartwell 
NAYS:   
EXCUSED:  Oatman & Kaer 
STATUS: Motion Passed. 
 

j)  Solid Waste Dump Tickets Low-Cost Spring Cleanup CY24, discussion and possible action item; 
Nyquest Moved to approve the Solid Waste Dump Tickets Low-Cost Spring Cleanup CY24 to include 

Residents/Property Owners 
Burger Seconded 
Discussion: 
Hartwell requested to include Residents/Property Owners be included.  
Nyquest requested the option for mayor/City Administrator to approve additional tickets.  
Huestis commented that admin staff thinks it works well. There is the ability to designate another to use their 

ticket for them. 
MOTION: Move to approve the Solid Waste Dump Tickets Low-Cost Spring Cleanup CY24 to include 

Residents/Property Owners 
F/S:  Nyquest/Burger 
YEAS:  Nyquest, Blair, LaVoie, Burger, Hartwell 
NAYS:   
EXCUSED:  Oatman & Kaer 
STATUS: Motion Passed. 

 
k)  Authorizing Temporary Employment of Councilman Blair, for Snow/Ice Removal and Related 

Equipment  Maintenance, discussion and action item; 
Nyquest moved to approve Authorizing Temporary Employment of Councilman Blair, for Snow/Ice Removal and 

Related Equipment  Maintenance 
Hartwell Seconded 
Discussion as follows: 
Huestis clarified that the City hires Max to grade the roads and remove snow/ice since his retirement.  



 p g .  4                M i n u t e s  J a n  1 6 ,  2 0 2 4  R e g u l a r  C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g  

MOTION: Move to approve the Authorizing Temporary Employment of Councilman Blair, for Snow/Ice 
Removal and Related Equipment  Maintenance 

F/S:  Nyquest/Hartwell 
YEAS:  Nyquest, Blair, LaVoie, Burger, Hartwell 
NAYS:   
EXCUSED:  Oatman & Kaer 
STATUS: Motion Passed. 

 
12) ORDINANCES FOR INTRODUCTION: 

l)  Ordinance 24-02-06-01: Title 2- Administration & Personnel, Chapter 02.04-City Council, Section 
02.04.130-Meetings--Regular, Subsection (A) Day Of Meetings Held, discussion and action item; 

NYQUEST moved to approve Ord 24-02-06-01  Title 2- Administration & Personnel, Chapter 02.04-City Council, 
Section 02.04.130-Meetings--Regular, Subsection (A) Day Of Meetings Held. Burger seconded the motion.  
Discussion as follows: 

Nyquest: Not required by state law to meet twice, but only by our code. Public can speak on this at the hearing 
next meeting. This Ord amendment would put us at 1 meeting requirement with a second meeting as an 
option.  

MOTION: Move to approve Ordinance 24-02-06-01 Title 2- Administration & Personnel, Chapter 02.04-City 
Council, Section 02.04.130-Meetings--Regular, Subsection (A) Day Of Meetings Held 

F/S:  Nyquest/Burger 
YEAS:  Nyquest, Blair, LaVoie, Burger, Hartwell 
NAYS:   
EXCUSED:  Oatman & Kaer 
STATUS: Motion Passed. 
 
13) ORDINANCES FOR PUBLIC HEARING: 
14) CONTINUATION OF PUBLIC COMMENT: No Public Comment 
15) CONTINUATION OF COUNCIL COMMENT:  

Hartwell commented that he will be heading down south for medical, will try to phone in while gone.  
Nyquest commented that he will be out for surgery mid Feb, back depending on healing. Will miss the first Meeting in 
March. Next meeting will be Feb 6th.  

16) ADJOURNMENT: 
Mayor Nyquest adjourned the meeting at 7:15 pm 

 



Page 1 of 1 
Department Reports are given at the Regular City Council Meeting the 3rd Tuesday of every month  

 City of Thorne Bay 
Thorne Bay, AK 999109 

PHONE: (907) 828-3380; FAX: (907) 828-3374 
E-MAIL: cityclerk@thornebay-ak.gov 

 

DEPARTMENT REPORT 
Subject: Monthly Department Report 
 

Department:  Water & Sewer Utility   
 

Supervisor: Sam Sawyer, Level II Water 
 

Employees: Sam Sawyer, Supervisor  
 Willy Jennings, Employee 

 

Date: Feb 2024  
 
 

A Departmental Overview 
The Water/Sewer Department is administered by Sam Sawyer, Level II Water Operator.  The 
Supervisor(s) and staff are responsible for the operation and maintenance of the City's four 
core sanitation services: Water Treatment, Water Distribution, Sewage Collection, and Sewer 
Treatment. Duties include maintenance, minor and major schedule and unscheduled repairs 
throughout all four systems, monthly reporting to the Alaska Department of Environmental 
Conservation as required, direct sampling as scheduled for water quality and wastewater 
effluent quality compliance, implementation of a preventative maintenance schedule, 
construction of new water distribution mains and residential /commercial service 
connections and wastewater collection mains and residential/commercial service 
connections.    
 
 

Current Department Activities: 
Aside from working at the water plant and conducting our usual daily work, we will be 
working at the sewer plant. 
Willie passed his Level I Water Treatment . 
 
 
 

mailto:cityclerk@thornebay-ak.gov


Address | City, St Zip Code 

Department report for Harbor/Parks 

Harbor is at capacity in both harbors.  

• In main harbor A and B floats which moor annual boats are at 100% capacity  

• C float and skiff slips which are seasonal are at half capacity and expected to be at full 

capacity during season  

• D float, otherwise know as the seaplane dock is full on east side with planes and the  

west side houses the Forest Service barge 

• All big boat slips at Davidson landing are at 100% capacity 

• Skiff slips at Davidson which are seasonal are at half capacity and expected to be at full 

capacity during season 

Current projects 

• I am currently working on renovating Harbor office, in drywall phase right now, painting 

within a week 

• Boat ramp hoop replacement has been delayed several times , we are currently waiting 

on treated lumber which has been ordered and will commence soon 

• Several improvements on city park playset has been brought to my attention and will be 

extending swings in order to lower them  closer to ground and replacing steering wheel , 

work will be done in February  

• Grass seed will applied to dirt areas of park in the spring 

PREPARED BY JACOB AARO 1-31-24 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF THORNE BAY  
ORDINANCE 24-02-06-01 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF THORNE BAY, ALASKA, AMENDING 

TITLE 2- ADMINISTRATION & PERSONNEL, CHAPTER 02.04-CITY COUNCIL, SECTION 
02.04.130-MEETINGS--REGULAR, SUBSECTION (A) DAY OF MEETINGS HELD.   

 
BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF THORNE BAY, ALASKA  

 

Section 1. Classification. This ordinance is of a general and permanent nature, the chapter 
and section hereby amended shall be added to the Thorne Bay Municipal Code. 

 

 
Section 2. Purpose.  The purpose of this ordinance is to amend meetings days from the first 

and third Tuesdays to the first Tuesday with the option to schedule a second 
meeting on the third Tuesday.   

 
Section 3. Amendment of Section.  The title and chapter of Title 02 Administration and 

Personnel, Chapter 02.04 City Council, Section 02.04.130 (A)-Meetings – Regular, 
is hereby amended and shall read as provided herein this ordinance. 

 
 

Section 4. Severability.  If any provisions of this ordinance or any application thereof to any 
person or circumstances is held invalid, the circumstances shall not be affected 
thereby. 

ADDITIONS ARE IN BLUE AND CAPITALIZED 
Deletions are red and stricken 

 

AMENDMENT OF TITLE, CHAPTER & SECTION: 

TITLE 02- Administration and Personnel  
CHAPTER 02.04 – CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
THE FOLLOWING AMENDMENTS SHALL BE ADDED TO THE THORNE BAY MUNICIPAL CODE AS 

PROVIDED IN THIS ORDINANCE 

2.04.130 MEETINGS--REGULAR.  
A. ONE regular council meetings shall be held on the first and third Tuesdays of each 

month, WITH AN ADDITIONAL MEETING ON THE THIRD TUESDAY AS 
NEEDED. Either THIS meeting may be rescheduled for cause, but two ONE 

Introduction: January 16, 2024 . 
Public Hearing:  February 6, 2024  
Sponsor: Mayor Shane Nyquest 
Vote:        Yeas, _ _ Nays, __ Absent 



 

monthly meetings shall be held, unless one is cancelled by the majority vote of the 
City Council.  

B. Regular council meetings shall be held at City Hall unless that meeting place is 
unavailable in which case the meeting may be held at another location designated 
by the council presiding officer. (Ord. 04-06-17-01 §4, 2004; Ord. 90-24 §5(part), 
1990) 

 

Section 5. Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective upon adoption. 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED February 6, 2024 
 
 

__________________________ 
    Shane Nyquest, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Caitlyn Sawyer, City Clerk Treasurer 
 

 



 

Page | 1 of 4                                                                                Ordinance 24-03-05-01; Atlas Tower Lease  

 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF THORNE BAY  
ORDINANCE 24-03-05-01 

 
A NON-CODE ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF THORNE BAY, ALASKA, 
APPROVING AN OPTION TO LEASE CITY PROPERTY TO ATLAS TOWER FOR UP TO THREE 

YEARS FOR THE PURPOSE OF DETERMINING ITS ADEQUACY FOR THE CONSTRUCTION AND 
LONG TERM OPERATION OF A COMMUNICATIONS TOWER AND IF FOUND TO BE SUITABLE 
FOR SUCH THEN THE EXERCISE OF THE OPTION CONVERTING TO A THIRTY YEAR LEASE AND 

AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE THE APPROPRIATE DOCUMENTS.   
 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF THORNE BAY, ALASKA  
 

Section 1. Classification. This is a non-code ordinance.  
 

 
Section 2. Purpose.  The purpose of this ordinance is to provide an option for the lease of City 

owned property to Atlas Tower for an initial testing period of three years with the 
possibility of them exercising the option and thus converting to a thirty-year lease 
for constructing and operating a communications tower, following a successful 
testing period.   

 
Section 3. Lease Terms Summary. The City of Thorne Bay (Lessor) intends to enter into a 

long-term lease of city property (a portion of Tract EGP of Survey 93-6 located 
within A.S.L.S. 87-5 and the SW ¼ of Section 22, Township 71 South, Range 84 
East) to Atlas Tower1, LLC of Boulder Colorado (Lessee) for the proposed purpose 
of erecting a communications tower that would host cellular telecommunications 
providers.  

WHEREAS,  Lessee has expressed a desire to construct and operate a communications tower 
in the City of Thorne Bay for the purpose of hosting cellular communications 
providers to improve the access and quality of cellular services and a larger 
coverage area in and around the City of Thorne Bay; and   

WHEREAS,  Lessor has certain properties that the Lessee, and/or their prospective carriers, 
have determined would be advantageous in providing these improved coverages 
and services and desires to lease the best location available for their tower; and 

WHEREAS,  the Lessee and the Lessor have negotiated in good faith to provide for a two-
stage lease approach whereby the Lessor has agreed to the terms and conditions 
of a 30 year lease with up to four five year extensions should the property being 
considered be deemed suitable for the intended purpose after the Lessee 
perfects all aspects of the proposed project to construct the tower during a three 
year period of time called the “Testing Period”; and  

WHEREAS,  the Lessor agrees to provide the Lessee with an “Option” to initiate the lease 
anytime within the 3-year Option timeframe provided for the testing period to 
determine the suitability of the property for the intended purpose and other 
business related matters as may need to be undertaken by Lessee to substantiate 

Introduction: February 6, 2024 . 
Public Hearing:  March 5, 2024  
Sponsor: Mayor Shane Nyquest 
Vote:        Yeas, _ _ Nays, __ Absent 



 

Page | 2 of 4                                                                                Ordinance 24-03-05-01; Atlas Tower Lease  

the long term investment in the property and initiate the lease by constructing a 
communications tower; and  

WHEREAS,  the Lessee has identified two other potential locations on City owned property in 
case their first choice as depicted in the Lease under Exhibit 2 does not prove to 
be a suitable location during the investigatory process known as the testing 
period; and  

WHEREAS,  the Lessor agrees that if the Lessee desires to change to one of the other two 
predetermined locations, the Lease Exhibit No. 2 and other provisions concerning 
the location of the Tower can be modified during the Testing Period to focus 
efforts on another City owned property without the need to come back to the 
City Council and start a new Lease Option Term so long as the process can still be 
completed within the three year Testing Period; and  

WHEREAS,  Lessee has agreed to pay a Lump Sum payment of $2,000 upon signing the Lease 
for the Option which provides them complete access to the land for up to three 
years to perform the necessary preliminary engineering and permitting work 
necessary to successfully construct and operate a communications tower on the 
property during this time known as the Testing Period; and 

WHEREAS, should the Lessee find the property suitable for said purpose, upon either a 
Notice to the Lessor or the initiation of construction of the Tower on the 
property, the Initial Term of the rent shall begin and the initial rate shall be 
$500.00 per month with an annual increase of 2% over the previous year’s rent 
plus a one-time Lump Sum payment of $25,000.00; and 

  WHEREAS, Thorne Bay Municipal Code 2.56.190, 2.56.200, and 2.56.220 states City Council 
shall approve or deny the request for long-term lease agreements via non-code 
ordinance considering the type and value of the improvements proposed. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of Thorne Bay, Alaska, hereby approves 
and authorizes the Mayor to execute the attached lease agreement identified as 
Exhibit A, providing for a new thirty-year lease of municipally owned lands located 
on a portion of Tract EGP of Survey 93-6 located within A.S.L.S. 87-5 and the SW ¼ 
of Section 22, Township 71 South, Range 84 East which will be approximately 
2,500 square feet in size for the purpose of the construction and long-term 
operation of a communications tower and other rights and benefits as are further 
substantiated in the Lease agreement itself attached hereto.  

 
 

Section 4. Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective upon adoption. 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED March 5, 2024. 
 
 

__________________________ 
    Shane Nyquest, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Caitlyn Sawyer, City Clerk Treasurer 
 
 



 

Page | 3 of 4                                                                                Ordinance 24-03-05-01; Atlas Tower Lease  

 

THORNE BAY MUNICIPAL CODE: 
ARTICLE Ill. LONG TERM LEASE OR SHORT-TERM LEASE OF ClTY OWNED REAL 
PROPERTY 

 
2.56.190 LANDS AVAILABLE FOR LEASING-CLASSIFICATION OF LANDS. 

A. All lands and interest in land owned by the city, including tide and submerged lands, may 
be leased or rented as hereinafter provided. Thorne Bay RV Park, Thorne Bay 
Harbor Facilities, Parking and other service rented by the day, week, month or year are 
regulated in other sections of the Thorne Bay Municipal Code. 

B. Before accepting applications to lease lands, the city shall have zoned by ordinance 
or otherwise classified the lands in question for leasing and for particular land uses. No 
lease shall be granted except for the particular uses for which the tract is zoned or 
classified. The classification of a tract of leased land may be changed by ordinance after 
consideration by the City. 

C. No city-owned property shall be leased or otherwise developed prior to the assignment 
of a particular zone or the repeal of the reserved use classification. 

D. Long Term Lease. A long-term lease herein referred to as "Lease" may not exceed 30 years. 

E. Short Term Lease. A short-term lease herein referred to as "Rental Agreement" may 
not exceed 5 years. The City may in its discretion require amendments or revisions to the 
lease as a condition of approval for extension. Short term leases are subject to the 
specific short- term lease terms set forth in Article Ill. 

F. Tideland Lease. Tideland leases may not exceed 99 years. A Tideland Lease herein 
referred to as "Municipal Tideland Lease" may not exceed 99 years. Long term leases are 
subject to terms set forth in article iii. 

(Ordinance 20-10-12-01; Prior Ord. 16-03-01-02) 
 

2.56.200 LEVELS OF APPROVAL REQUIRED. 

A. Except as provided in subsection B and C, leases of city-owned property shall be 
authorized by non-code ordinance. 

B. Leases valued at ten thousand dollars or less and for a lease term (including the 
lessee's rights of renewal) of 5 years or less, and involving two acres or less, may be 
authorized by the council by resolution. 

C. All short-term leases or rental agreements may be authorized by the city council. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page | 4 of 4                                                                                Ordinance 24-03-05-01; Atlas Tower Lease  

NON-CODE ORDINANCE 20-11-17-01 
CITY OF THORNE BAY 

 
2.56.220 TERM OF LEASES. 

C. Any Municipal Tideland Lease will be negotiated between the applicant 
and the city and be for a term not to exceed 99 years with the option of 
renewal, in the sole discretion of the city, for a period not to exceed 99-year 
increments and with such revisions and amendments as deemed by the 
city in the best interest of the city. The applicant shall state in the 
application the term desired. In determining whether to grant a lease for 
the requested term, the council shall consider the nature, extent and cost of 
the improvements which the applicant agrees as a condition of the lease to 
construct and the value of the other relevant factors. The term of any given 
lease shall depend upon the desirability of the proposed use, the amount 
of investment and improvements proposed to be made by the lessee, 
and the nature of the improvements proposed with respect to the durability 
and time required to amortize the proposed investment. 

((Ordinance 20-10-12-01; Prior Ord. 16-03-01-02) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 pg. 1               Resolution 24-02-06-01 Appointing Vice Mayor 

RESOLUTION 24-02-06-01 
CITY OF THORNE BAY 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF THORNE BAY, APPOINTING A VICE MAYOR 

FOR THE CITY OF THORNE BAY, TO SERVE A TERM OF ONE YEAR, EXPIRING ON THE MONDAY 
FOLLOWING THE CERTIFICATION OF THE REGULAR MUNICIPAL ELECTION. 

 
WHEREAS the City Council is the governing body for the City of Thorne Bay, and  
 
WHEREAS the Thorne Bay Municipal Code Section 2.08.020 Vice Mayor, requires that the City 
Council meet on the first Monday after certification of each general election and shall elect a 
councilmember to serve as Vice Mayor for the term of one year; and  
 
WHEREAS  
.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF THORNE BAY, ALASKA: 
 

Section 1:  That the above findings are hereby true and correct and are incorporated 
herein in their entirety. 

Section 2:  That the City Council appoints  to serve as the Vice Mayor of the City of 
Thorne Bay and shall serve a term of one-year.  

Section 3:  That this Resolution shall become effective immediately upon approval by 
the City Council of the City of Thorne Bay, Alaska. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Thorne Bay, Alaska this 6th day of 
February, 2024 
 
 

                                                                  ____________________________ 
  Shane Nyquest, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Caitlyn Sawyer, City Clerk/Treasurer 

Introduction:   February 6, 2024       
Vote:      Yeas, __ Nays,  __ Absent 


	Minutes- Jan 16 2024.pdf
	11) NEW BUSINESS:
	g)  Resolution 24-01-16-01: Updating the Authorized  Signers on The City of Thorne Bay’s Tongass Federal Credit Union Checking, Savings and Gaming Accounts, discussion and action item;
	NYQUEST moved to approve Resolution 24-01-16-01 Updating the Authorized  Signers on The City of Thorne Bay’s Tongass Federal Credit Union Checking, Savings and Gaming Accounts
	Burger seconded the motion.  Discussion as follows;
	Hartwell questioned why Bubba was on the Resolution
	Huestis clarified that another Resolution would be coming to fix that at another meeting.
	City Clerk commented that the only changes on this resolution were for the Gaming Account Signers and the Checking Account Signers would be updated when we have a replacement for Bubba’s Vice Mayor Seat.
	MOTION: Move to approve Resolution 24-01-16-01 Updating the Authorized  Signers on The City of Thorne Bay’s Tongass Federal Credit Union Checking, Savings and Gaming Account
	F/S:  Nyquest/Burger
	YEAS:  Nyquest, Blair, LaVoie, Burger, Hartwell
	NAYS:
	EXCUSED:  Oatman & Kaer
	STATUS: Motion Passed.
	h)  Resolution 24-01-16-02: Adopting an Alternative Allocation Method for FY24 Shared Fisheries Business Tax Program, discussion and action item;
	NYQUEST moved to approve  Resolution 24-01-16-02, Adopting an Alternative Allocation Method for FY24 Shared Fisheries Business Tax Program
	Burger seconded the motion.
	Discussion as follows:
	Burger questioned what was being changed?
	Clarification was given that there are no changes, it is the same as we always have passed.
	MOTION: Move to approve the Resolution 24-01-16-02 Adopting an Alternative Allocation Method for FY24 Shared Fisheries Business Tax Program
	F/S:  Nyquest/Burger
	YEAS:  Nyquest, Blair, LaVoie, Burger, Hartwell
	NAYS:
	EXCUSED:  Oatman & Kaer
	STATUS: Motion Passed.
	i)  Resolution 24-01-16-03: Accepting the Resignation of Councilman Oatman, discussion and possible action item;
	NYQUEST moved to approve Resolution 24-01-16-03 Accepting the Resignation of Councilman Oatman
	Burger seconded the motion.
	Discussion: None
	MOTION: Move to approve the approve Resolution 24-01-16-03 Accepting the Resignation of Councilman Oatman
	F/S:  Nyquest/Burger
	YEAS:  Nyquest, Blair, LaVoie, Burger, Hartwell
	NAYS:
	EXCUSED:  Oatman & Kaer
	STATUS: Motion Passed.
	j)  Solid Waste Dump Tickets Low-Cost Spring Cleanup CY24, discussion and possible action item;
	Nyquest Moved to approve the Solid Waste Dump Tickets Low-Cost Spring Cleanup CY24 to include Residents/Property Owners
	Burger Seconded
	Discussion:
	Hartwell requested to include Residents/Property Owners be included.
	Nyquest requested the option for mayor/City Administrator to approve additional tickets.
	Huestis commented that admin staff thinks it works well. There is the ability to designate another to use their ticket for them.
	MOTION: Move to approve the Solid Waste Dump Tickets Low-Cost Spring Cleanup CY24 to include Residents/Property Owners
	F/S:  Nyquest/Burger
	YEAS:  Nyquest, Blair, LaVoie, Burger, Hartwell
	NAYS:
	EXCUSED:  Oatman & Kaer
	STATUS: Motion Passed.
	k)  Authorizing Temporary Employment of Councilman Blair, for Snow/Ice Removal and Related Equipment  Maintenance, discussion and action item;
	Nyquest moved to approve Authorizing Temporary Employment of Councilman Blair, for Snow/Ice Removal and Related Equipment  Maintenance
	Hartwell Seconded
	Discussion as follows:
	Huestis clarified that the City hires Max to grade the roads and remove snow/ice since his retirement.
	MOTION: Move to approve the Authorizing Temporary Employment of Councilman Blair, for Snow/Ice Removal and Related Equipment  Maintenance
	F/S:  Nyquest/Hartwell
	YEAS:  Nyquest, Blair, LaVoie, Burger, Hartwell
	NAYS:
	EXCUSED:  Oatman & Kaer
	STATUS: Motion Passed.
	NYQUEST moved to approve Ord 24-02-06-01  Title 2- Administration & Personnel, Chapter 02.04-City Council, Section 02.04.130-Meetings--Regular, Subsection (A) Day Of Meetings Held. Burger seconded the motion.  Discussion as follows:
	Nyquest: Not required by state law to meet twice, but only by our code. Public can speak on this at the hearing next meeting. This Ord amendment would put us at 1 meeting requirement with a second meeting as an option.
	MOTION: Move to approve Ordinance 24-02-06-01 Title 2- Administration & Personnel, Chapter 02.04-City Council, Section 02.04.130-Meetings--Regular, Subsection (A) Day Of Meetings Held
	F/S:  Nyquest/Burger
	YEAS:  Nyquest, Blair, LaVoie, Burger, Hartwell
	NAYS:
	EXCUSED:  Oatman & Kaer
	STATUS: Motion Passed.
	15) CONTINUATION OF COUNCIL COMMENT:
	Hartwell commented that he will be heading down south for medical, will try to phone in while gone.
	Nyquest commented that he will be out for surgery mid Feb, back depending on healing. Will miss the first Meeting in March. Next meeting will be Feb 6th.
	Administrator Report - 1-16-24.pdf
	Supervisor: ____________________________
	A Departmental Overview
	Current Department Activities:

	ADP8051.tmp
	CLERK’S REPORT
	FINANCIAL REPORT:

	ADP5084.tmp
	Supervisor: Sam Sawyer, Level II Water
	A Departmental Overview
	Current Department Activities:


	ADPEF1A.tmp
	2.04.130 MEETINGS--REGULAR.

	ADPBA1E.tmp
	2.56.190 LANDS AVAILABLE FOR LEASING-CLASSIFICATION OF LANDS.
	2.56.200 LEVELS OF APPROVAL REQUIRED.

	ADP5593.tmp
	Supervisor: Sam Sawyer, Level II Water
	A Departmental Overview
	Current Department Activities:




